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Set close to the street on a corner lot on the west side of the courthouse 
square of Woodville, the old Branch Banking House building (1819) consists of 
a single block, measuring thirty-five feet across the front (north) and thirty- 
eight feet along the sides. The two-story brick structure was later stuccoed 
and scored to imitate ashlar masonry. In the late nineteenth century a third 
story was added, but it burned ca. 1900 and was removed. The resulting parapet 
wall steps down twice toward the rear of the building, with a corbeled cornice 
of exposed brick capping the whole. Just below the cornice of the facade, a 
corbeled belt course extends between two projections.

Centered in the.three-bay facade is a,doorway, consisting of a four-light 
transom and.a partly glazed double-leaf door, both set in a rectangular opening 
with paneled embrasure and stone slip sill. Each leaf of the door has a large 
recessed lower panel with beveled edges and a raised field, framed by the molded 
edges of the stiles and rails. The door was originally closed by double-leaf 
blinds like those remaining on the matching door on the west side. The exterior 
face of each leaf is decorated by matched diagonal boards and the interior 
face is decorated by a large panel with a smaller panel above and below. These 
panels are similar to those in the lower part of the door. The blinds are hung 
on wrought iron strap hinges, three to each leaf.

The double-hung sash windows are set in rectangular openings with wooden 
slip sills. All sash are two-over-two except for one original twelve-over-twelve 
sash in the lower window on the west side. This same window also retains the only 
original window blinds. These double-leaf blinds are hung on wrought iron strap 
hinges, two for each leaf, and each, leaf is.composed of two matching large panels 
with a smaller panel above. On,the exterior face the panels are set flush, but 
on the interior face the plain panels are recessed within the molded edges of the 
stiles and rails, ......

The symmetrical fenestration of the west side consists of a door and a win­ 
dow placed beneath two upper windows. The door unit, matching that on the facade, 
is located toward the front of the building. The fenestration of the east side 
is similar but lacks the lower window. The western portion of the rear (south) 
wall is symmetrically arranged, with three windows above a door and its flanking 
two windows. The eastern portion is punctuated by a single door set above the 
level of the first floor and reached by a series of concrete steps. The rear 
wall shows evidence of previous attachments; the fenestration of the eastern 
portion of the wall appears to have been changed.

The first floor contains three small rooms arranged across the rear and 
a large room (32 feet by 23 feet) occupying the entire front portion of the 
building. The plan of the second floor is similar, except that the two rear 
rooms to the west are combined into one long room. At both levels, the rear 
room to the east contains a stairway with slender, turned balusters and a round- 
section handrail. Though the stairs now lead straight up from the exterior 
rear door,, at one time they made ,a quarter- turn at the bottom to lead up from / 
the center rear room. Beneath the stairs is the vault, its walls lined with 
wooden shelves and its six-foot-square floor paved with brick. The vault is 
entered from the large front room by way of a low, elliptically arched opening
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The~Branch Banking 'House iii WOodville; Mississippi," completed "in early 
1819 as a branch of the Bank of the State of Mississippi', Jis the "oldest banking 
edifice in Mississippi and thus was an integral partf'of the g tsrt6 vs economic 
activity in its formative period. Purchased later to serve as a branch of 
another state institution, the Planters 1 Bank, the building served twenty-five 
years as a banking facility. The Banking House is one of the earliest examples 
of the Federal style in Mississippi and features an exceptionally detailed in­ 
terior which includes the original vault.

In February, 1818, the territorial Bank of the Mississippi became the 
official Bank of the State of Mississippi through a bill entitled "An Act 
Supplemental to an act entitled, 'An Act to Establish a Bank in the Mississippi 
Territory. 1 " This bill proposed simply to convert the territorial bank into the 
state bank without drastically changing the existing laws governing it. Aside 
from increasing capital stock, adding three directors, and making a few other 
necessary administrative shifts, the charter remained the same, with one im­ 
portant exception: offices of deposit and discount were to he opened at Port 
Gibson and Woodville, Mississippi's second and third largest cities, respectively. 
After almost a decade of banking in this region, Natchez lost its monopoly of 
Mississippi banking and became the parent institution. Though the subscription 
books were opened riri the cities soon after the bill's passage~on January 28, 
1818, neither branch was to go into operation until $25,000 was paid in on 
subscription of $50,000. The directors next began construction of suitable 
banking houses for the two branches in the spring of 1818.

An April 28th letter to Woodville Branch president Hays P. White from the 
parent bank enclosed "a plan of a Banking House, estimate of materials, and 
cost of building" and stated further: "We hope the procuring a lot can be 
accommodated without any difficulty. The estimates are furnished by a respecta­ 
ble Builder who thinks them very reasonable and perhaps you may obtain still 
better terms." The vault was fabricated by a Natchez blacksmith, and the outer 
vault doors and their locks, as well as the front door locks, were ordered from 
New York. Williams and Lane of Natchez contracted to lay the brick at a cost of 
$4.00 per thousand. Delayed by improper scheduling and delivery of materials, the 
banking house was not completed until late January of 1819, with the opening taking 
place rthe week of February 23. Full title to the property was officially acquired 
with the recording of the deed on May 21, 1819 (Deed Book B:157-59).
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7 - DESCRIPTION

framed by a molded wood architrave. The opening is closed by a pair of iron- 
reinforced, double-leaf doors hung on heavy hinges and secured by large box locks 
with keeps.

On each floor, two fireplaces are placed back to back in the center of the 
east-west cross wall. Cabinets are recessed in the sides of the chimney-breasts 
and Federal mantelpieces are attached to the fronts. The simpler mantelpieces 
in the rear rooms have full entablatures broken forward in the center and at 
the sides over flanking pilasters. The mantelpiece in the large upper room is 
further enriched by additional molding of the mantelshelf, paneling of the 
pilasters, and carving of the architrave. The carving includes, in the central 
panel, an oval patera in the frieze and, in each side panel, an urn set within 
a rectangular recess in the frieze and a plain oval recess in the architrave. 
All rooms are finished with a baseboard and a chair rail. The chair rail con­ 
tinues across the base of the window openings to form the facing of the window 
sills. The splayed jambs of the windows in the large upper room are reeded, 
but those of the other windows are paneled to match the paneling on the doors, 
the door jambs, the cabinet doors, and the window blinds.

The integrity of the building appears to have been well maintained; few 
important changes have been made. Among the changes are the replacement of 
most of the window sash, the installation of a partition dividing the large 
downstairs room, the reworking of the stairs, the removal of the mantelpiece in 
the large downstairs room, and the removal of most of the blinds.

8 - SIGNIFICANCE

For more than a decade the Bank of Mississippi enjoyed prosperity, until 
political conflicts gave rise to the chartering of a rival state bank, the 
Planters' Bank, in 1830. It soon appeared that the two banks could not coexist 
without harming both institutions and the state's economy. The politically 
stronger Planters' Bank faction prevailed, and on December 31, 1831, the Bank 
of Mississippi officially transferred its physical and monetary assets to the 
Planters' Bank. On that same day, the banking houses at Woodville and Port 
Gibson were purchased by the new institution. The Planters' Bank was soon 
the victim of "flush times" speculation and the "Panic of 1837," which finally 
brought about its failure in 1840. Sold by the stockholders in December, 1843, 
the Woodville Branch Banking House came into private hands.

The building was subsequently owned by Mrs. Julia Stierlin, who in 1872 
deeded it to her daughter, Mrs. J. C. P. Mayer. During the 1880s, the building
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8 - SIGNIFICANCE

was used for offices. In 1887, Mrs. Mayer deeded the property to her son, 
Christopher Shaefer, who sold it to Mrs. Lina Thomas and C. F. Zoller in 1905. 
They in turn sold it to the Woodmen of the World in 1915. The Woodville Civic 
Club purchased the building in 1976.
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